Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Commissioners” Journal

2025, THIRTY-FIRST MEETING

CRAWFORD COUNTY COURTHOUSE, COMMISSIONERS” BOARD ROOM
Girard, KS. Friday, May 09, 2025 at 10:00 AM

The Crawford County Board of Commissioners met pursuant to Kansas Statutes.

Annotated Chapter 19, Article 2, Section 18 in due and regular session with open doors.

Commissioner Bruce Blair served as the presiding officer.

Commissioner Carl Wood was in attendance.

County Clerk Lisa Lusker and County Counselor Jim Emerson were seated with the

Board.

Vice Chairman Blair led the Pledge of Allegiance.

UNDER THE HEADING BUSINESS FROM A PREVIOUS MEETING
CONSENT AGENDA
On motion (25-195) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair that
the consent agenda be approved including:
1. Approval of the May 06, 2025 minutes of the Board of County

Commissioners, and

2. Authorizing the Chairman to sign the previous week’s vouchers.
Yeas: Commissioners Wood and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody
The motion prevailed and the consent agenda was approved.

SIGNING OF MOTIONS
The County Clerk presented the following motions for Commissioners’ signatures:

Motion 25 193 | That the consent agenda be approved including: Approval of the May
02, 2025 minutes
Motion 25 194 | To recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for

15 minutes to discuss nuisances pursuant to the non-elected personnel
exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to protect the privacy of the
individual employees. The County Commissioners, County Counselor
Jim Emerson, and Zoning Administrator May Smith attended the
executive session. The open meeting will resume at 10:50 AM. The
Motion passed 3-0

Page 1 of 5




Board of Crawford County Commissioners

UNDER THE HEADING NEW BUSINESS
PROCLAMATION AND ORDERS OF THE BOARD
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND OPENING OF ANNOUNCED BIDS
MESSAGES FROM CRAWFORD CO LOCAL BOARD OF HEALTH
MESSAGES FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
MESSAGES FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS
MESSAGES FROM APPOINTED OFFICIALS

Item One: Zoning Administrator May Smith addressed the Commissioners. She
discussed another nuisance property that the county has addressed several times and she
explained it is the same situation as the previous property she discussed recently. She
stated that this is property owned by Rex Terry. She presented Resolution #2025-019.

On motion (25-196) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to
adopt Resolution #2025-019, a Resolution declaring a nuisance is present as defined in
the Crawford County January 2025 Nuisance and Dangerous Structure Abatement
Regulations.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody

The motion prevailed.

Commissioner Blair asked about the property owners being notified of the cleanup dates
and Ms. Smith explained. She also explained what this resolution does for the property
owners. Commissioner Wood asked the process of the property owners requesting
another hearing and Ms. Smith explained.

MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC

Item One: Mr. John Copyak with Shasta Power addressed the Commissioners. He stated
they are currently working with Pittsburg State University and that the college could
benefit from what Shasta Power could bring to the county. He mentioned he wants the
moratorium lifted. Commissioner Wood asked about the school districts receiving money
and Mr. Copyak answered. Commissioner Wood asked about the solar panels being tax
exempt for 10 years and Mr. Copyak explained the panels are but other components are
taxable. Commissioner Wood asked how they will come up with the money to give to the
school districts and Mr. Copyak answered it is based off of the investment.
Commissioner Blair asked what he thinks that the assessed value of the taxable
components is and Mr. Copyak answered. Commissioner Blair informed Mr. Copyak
about the consultant being present on Tuesday at the meeting to discuss the
Comprehensive Plan.

Item Two: Ms. Melisia Rhodes addressed the Commissioners. She provided the
Commissioners with a handout of projected taxable amounts on the components that will
not be tax exempt. Ms. Rhodes discussed school budgets. She stated she is working on
writing a grant for schools in Cherokee County and one in Neosho County who are
wanting to go solar. Commissioner Blair asked what Cherokee County has done and Ms.

Page 2 of 5



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Rhodes explained. Ms. Rhodes stated they will be set up at the farm show and would like
approval to put the QR code for the survey on their table. Commissioner Blair stated he
sees no reason they could not put the QR code on their table.

Item Three: Mr. Mike Oplotnik asked if there was a date that the survey was supposed
to be completed by and Commissioner Blair answered they are looking for a certain
percentage of responses. Commissioner Wood stated there was a tentative date in April
but that post cards were not even sent out by that time yet. Mr. Oplotnik stated they need
to get a decision made. Mr. Oplotnik stated the longer the Commissioners wait on survey
responses the more it seems like they are waiting for responses to meet their agenda.
Commissioner Blair stated that is not the case. Mr. Oplotnik stated he is understanding
there is a solar project for the City of Girard and he wants to know what process they
went through to get approval since they are in the lines of Crawford County.
Commissioner Blair answered cities do not fall under the moratorium and that he does
not know the process for the city to have gotten approved. Mr. Oplotnik asked to be
updated on zoning and thoughts on zoning District 1 and Commissioner Blair answered
they are hoping the survey will give opinions on if people want zoning. Mr. Oplotnik
asked what percentage they are hoping to receive in surveys for each district and
Commissioner Blair answered. Commissioner Wood asked Mr. Emerson if he knows
when they implemented zoning in the county and Mr. Emerson answered the late 1960’s.
Mr. Oplotnik discussed cities annexing further into the county.

Item Four: Ms. Rhodes addressed the Commissioners again. She asked if the mailer for
the survey has been sent yet and Commissioner Blair stated it should be coming in the
mail and that he does not have details on the delay. Commissioner Blair stated Mr.
Joshua Albin will be here Tuesday to answer questions.

Item Five: Mr. Steve Kuplen addressed the Commissioners. He discussed why certain
parts were zoned and some were not zoned and what he has heard regarding this.

Item Six: Mr. Rick Elnicki addressed the Commissioners. He discussed the urgency of
getting the Comprehensive Plan finalized. Mr. Elnicki discussed the solar energy Evergy
is wanting to put in Crawford County. He mentioned if Crawford County does not get
moving on this then another county will benefit from this instead.

Item Seven: Mr. Kuplen addressed the Commissioners again. He discussed the solar
panels being tax exempt for 10 years but that they would be signing a 35-year contract
with the company so there would still be a lot of tax money paid. Commissioner Wood
asked about the project being abandoned before the 10 years is up and Mr. Copyak
answered. Commissioner Wood discussed the selling of the Hepler project.
Commissioner Wood asked why the company does not use a cash bond instead of paper
bond and Mr. Copyak answered. Commissioner Blair asked if solar has decommission
bonds and Mr. Copyak confirmed.

NEW BUSINESS

Item One: County Clerk Lisa Lusker mentioned it is budget time and that Ms. Randi
Ryan has sent out request forms to all departments. She stated the Commissioners need to

Page 3 of 5



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

begin thinking about meetings with the department heads. Ms. Lusker stated they have 2
weeks to fill out the forms so she wants to know if they can begin scheduling on May
30th. Commissioner Wood asked for 30 minutes with each department head. Ms. Lusker
asked if there are days that do not work for the Commissioners. Ms. Lusker confirmed
that they can begin scheduled on May 30th at 9:00 AM and the Commissioners agreed.

Item Two: Ms. Lusker mentioned she received an invitation for the Commissioners to
attend a tour of Class LTD sometime in early June. Ms. Lusker stated the Commissioners
begin thinking about a date in early June that may work for them.

Item Three: Ms. Lusker mentioned the Commissioners have been invited to Mt. Carmel
House groundbreaking ceremony. She explained this is the hospice facility for
Community Health Center of Southeast Kansas at 201 S Rouse in Pittsburg on Thursday
May 15 at 12:00 PM.

Item Four: Commissioner Blair discussed the Clerk storage building. He stated Mr.
Robert Gorentz stated the property east of the county barn would be better due to access
to utilities. Commissioner Blair explained that location would have to have a zoning
change through the City of Girard. He is just needing approval to submit the zoning
application.

On motion (25-197) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to
submit the zoning application for the Clerk’s storage building.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody

The motion prevailed.

OLD BUSINESS
EXECUTIVE SESSION

Item One: County Counselor Jim Emerson requested an executive session for 20 minutes
to discuss Non-Elected Personnel.

On motion (25-198) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Wood to
recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for 20 minutes to discuss
zoning pursuant to the non-elected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to protect
the privacy of the individual employees. The County Commissioners, County Counselor
Jim Emerson, and Zoning Administrator May Smith attended the executive session. The
open meeting will resume at 11:19 AM. The Motion passed 2-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Blair and Wood

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody

The motion prevailed.

Page 4 of 5



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 10:59 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 11:16 AM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

UNDER THE HEADING FUTURE BUSINESS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
FUTURE BUSINESS:

Item One: May 13, 2025- 8:30 AM Work Session to sign midmonth bills and payroll
vouchers.

Item Two: May 13, 2025- 9:00 AM Work Session with Mental Health Executive
Director Heather McCully.

Item Three: May 13, 2025- Mr. Joshua Albin discussing Comprehensive Plan.

Item Four: May 16, 2025- 9:00 AM Work Session with Ryan Insurance to discuss
insurance.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Item One: May 15, 2025- 12:00 PM Mt. Carmel House ground breaking ceremony at
201 S Rouse St, Pittsburg. One or more Commissioners may be in attendance.

UNDER THE HEADING MOTION TO ADJOURN
MOTION TO ADJOURN
Item One: Adjournment

On the motion of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to adjourn
the May 09, 2025 meeting of the Board of Crawford County Commissioners at 11:17 AM
and to reconvene at the next regularly scheduled time with open doors.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting: Commissioner Moody

The motion prevailed.

In Testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed my
official seal and submitted these minutes for the approval of the Board of Crawford
County Commissioners.

Lisa Lusker
County Clerk

<>

This submission completed at the Crawford County Courthouse in Girard.
Taken RJA 05/12/2025 10:00 AM/amended BKW 5/12/2025 11:30 AM

Page 5 of 5



